UNITED
NATIONS C R C

N . i
‘:\9 Convention on the S ERAL
72  Rights of the Child CRC/ O SR 536
25 May 1999

Original: ENGLISH

COW TTEE ON THE RI GHTS OF THE CHI LD
Twenty-first session
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 536t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 19 May 1999, at 10 a.m

Chai rperson: Ms. MO

CONTENTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS OF STATES PARTI ES (conti nued)

Initial report of Barbados (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conmittee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 99- 42074 (E)



CRC/ C/ SR. 536
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.20 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS OF STATES PARTI ES (agenda item 6) (continued)

Initial report of Barbados (continued) (CRC ¢/ 3/Add.45;
HRI / CORE/ 1/ Add. 64/ Rev. 1; CRC/ C/ Q BAR/ 1)

1. The CHAI RPERSON asked the del egati on of Barbados to respond to the
guestion raised by Ms. Mkhuane at the previous neeting concerni ng what was
considered to be “corporal punishment permitted in a reasonabl e degree”

2. M ss MASON said that her del egation recognized that corporal punishnent
could be detrinmental to a child s physical and psychol ogi cal health and

devel opnent. However, the current |aw in Barbados under the Prevention of
Cruelty to Children Act still referred to “noderate chastisenent” - a sonewhat
subj ective concept - as a method of punishnment and discipline. A nunmber of
cases had been brought before the courts and in nmost of themit had been

deci ded that the punishnment had been so excessive as to constitute physica
abuse. However, in other cases it had been decided that if, for exanple,

the child' s skin had not been broken or he or she had been only noderately
brui sed, that constituted noderate chastisenment. Those people in the
conmunity who did not believe in corporal punishment, including the Nationa
Committee for Monitoring the Rights of the Child, were working on the issue.

3. The CHAI RPERSON said that information was needed on not only the

physi cal inpact of corporal punishnent, but its psychol ogi cal and enotiona

i mpact. She invited the menmbers of the Conmittee to ask foll owup questions
on fam |y environnent and alternative care and on basic health and wel fare.

4, M. FULCI, noting that Ms. Quedraogo had al ready requested infornmation
on adoption, asked M. Giffith to el aborate on that subject. According to
the country report, domestic and intercountry adopti on were governed by the
Adoption Act of 1981 and the Adoption Regul ati ons of 1986. However, no
separate data were given for each type of adoption. Barbados was not a party
to the Hague Convention on Protection of Children and Cooperation in Respect
of Intercountry Adoption of 1993: was the Governnment planning to ratify it?
Mor eover, statistics for the Caribbean regi on suggested that boys were nore
frequently abandoned in infancy and childhood than girls: was there a reason
for that?

5. Regar di ng abuse and negl ect of children, NGO sources confirmed that

vi ol ence agai nst wonen and children was a continui ng social problem both in
Bar bados and worl dwi de. Wonmen's rights groups had reported that the nunmber of
known incidents of sexual assault, domestic violence and rape was on the

i ncrease, despite the continued reluctance of many victinms to report them
According to UNI CEF, the nunber of abandoned children in residential care in
the eastern Cari bbean area had al so risen. However, it was difficult to
quantify the extent of child abuse because of a |ack of accurate records. In
the light of the informati on given in paragraphs 116 to 123 of the report, had
any conprehensi ve research been conducted or planned on the m streatment of
children within and outside the fam|ly? Wre any other neasures being taken



CRC/ C/ SR. 536
page 3

or envisaged, such as information campaigns to help prevent m streatnent,
i ncl udi ng sexual abuse, and to pronote the treatnment and rehabilitation of
victinms?

6. Regardi ng basic health and welfare, he asked the del egation to provide
updated i nformati on on the percentage of children who were breastfed, since
UNICEF's State of the Wrld's Children 1998 report had given no data on
breast feedi ng i n Barbados.

7. The CHAI RPERSON pointed out that M. Fulci's questions regarding the
Hague Convention and raising public awareness of child abuse had al ready been
answered at the previous day's neeting.

8. Ms. OUEDRAOGO said that the country report indicated that young girls
were subjected to violence, sexual abuse and rape in the famly and even at
school. What neasures were being taken to give them better protecti on agai nst

abuse, including at school? The report also referred to difficulties
encountered by the Child Care Board in dealing with cases of abuse and

negl ect, for exanple, the refusal of the child' s famly to cooperate with the
Board. O her problenms were the length of the judicial process and the |ack of
cooperation anong the various services concerned. What neasures were being
taken by the CGovernnment to inmprove the quality of services and to induce
famlies to cooperate?

9. Regardi ng health and wel fare, nost nurseries were privately run and were
monitored by the Child Care Board. However, the nonitoring was inadequate
since it was done by one person alone. What sanctions were in place or

envi saged for non-observance of the minimumrules and norns in day-care
institutions? Had nore staff been recruited or had other action been taken

to i nprove the service?

10. The report said that there was no honel essness problemin Barbados:
was that still the case? Wre there any homel ess children? Since poverty
exi sted, cases of honel essness mght also occur. Had a study of the issue
been conduct ed?

11. Ms. KARP, referring to Mss Mason's explanati on of what constituted
noder ate chasti senment and what constituted abuse, said that if courts found
that, as long as the child' s bones were not broken, noderate chasti senent

rat her than abuse had taken place, that would inpede efforts to create an

at nrosphere of non-violence. Had a study been conducted into the possible
connection between the use of corporal punishnment to discipline children and
subsequent viol ent behavi our by those children? The transition froma culture
that all owed corporal punishment to a culture that recognized that corpora
puni shment only led to increased violence was a difficult one. However, a
nunmber of countries had made such a transition and Barbados could learn from
their experience in order to introduce alternative nethods of discipline

Wi t hout parents and teachers feeling that they had | ost control over children.

12. She requested nore informati on about the mi sbehaviour of girls which was
reported to probation officers. Such m sbehavi our apparently included
rudeness to parents and com ng home | ate; however, if it was reported to a



CRC/ C/ SR. 536
page 4

probation officer, it was presumably regarded as an offence. That suggested
that girls were not always recogni zed as having rights. Had that issue been
di scussed and, if so, what conclusions had been drawn?

13. Regardi ng child abuse within the honme, the issue of battered women
shoul d be raised, since children who grew up in a hone where viol ence was used
agai nst women tended to use viol ence against their own children. She was
awar e that Barbados had | egislation providing for offenders to | eave hone, but
had a comprehensive policy been devel oped on dealing with cases of domestic
violence in police stations and courts? Wre wonen encouraged to conpl ain and
were conplaints followed up? Wre offenders brought to trial?

14. Al t hough the problem of HV and AIDS was not yet a serious one in

Bar bados, had comprehensive policies been fornulated in that regard, including
how to involve children in an education canpai gn on the subject? How were
children with AIDS treated in the education systen? What nmeasures were being
taken to cope with a possible increase in the nunber of children orphaned as

a result of their parents dying of AIDS? Many children under 16 needed to
consult doctors or psychol ogi sts on adol escent health problenms w thout their
parents' consent: were free facilities available for that purpose? The

exi sting reproductive health curriculum needed to be expanded to cover other
probl ems such as drugs, violence and inter-relationships between children

15. She reiterated the need to fornmalize policy relating to disabled
children and to increase the nunber of professionals who specialized in
dealing with them since the shortage of such professionals resulted in nmany
di sabl ed children | eaving school at 16 wi thout the know edge or skills
necessary for life.

16. Ms. MXHUANE wel coned the action taken to address the health problens
of children aged O to 5 and the problem of mal nourishment, although obesity
and hypertension were still increasing. Children tended to acquire the eating
habits of their parents and that could lead to problens later inlife. Did
Bar bados have a conprehensive policy on nutrition and how did it filter down
to the popul ation at |arge?

17. The successes of the Family Life Devel opment programme had been
mentioned but had it encountered any difficulties? Although HV and AIDS did
not currently pose a significant problemin Barbados, had policies been

pl anned to deal with that issue in the future, for exanmple, the question of
chil dren who m ght become orphans through the death of their parents from

Al DS? Also, while the nunber of teenage pregnanci es had declined, the nunber
of abortions had increased, suggesting that abortion was being used as a

met hod of contraception. How was that question being addressed? On the

subj ect of reproductive health, progress had been made in teaching people
about responsi bl e sexual behaviour, but was the enotional aspect of sex also
covered?

18. Access to early chil dhood care was not universal and appeared to depend
on parents’ ability to pay for it. Wat was the Government’s policy in that
area? The information regarding disabl ed people seenmed to suggest that

i ntegration policies were not conprehensive enough and she requested nore



CRC/ C/ SR. 536
page 5

i nformati on about how t hey worked and what code of standards was used. The
statistics on suicide and parasuici de suggested that girls were affected nore
than boys. Had a study been conducted of the problens |eading to suicide and
how to alleviate then? They were being addressed to sone extent in the Famly
Li fe Devel opment progranme; however, nore substantial information was
required.

19. M. RABAH asked if there was a system for coordinati on between the
public and private sectors. Wre any centres other than St. Andrew s
Children's Centre and the Evalina Smith Children's Ward working with the

M nistry of Health and what degree of success had they achieved in protecting
children from di sease? In 1993, Barbados had accepted UNICEF' s challenge to
make hospitals nore baby-friendly; what progress had been made since then in
nmeeting that challenge? Could nore details and, if possible, figures be given
on nutrition and child health? Wat projects were planned for the future with
regard to child care and social security for children in Barbados?

20. M. DOEK, referring to paragraph 73 of the report, asked if there was
any difference between the custody arrangements for children of married and
unmarried couples. Had a famly reunification policy been devel oped for
chil dren who had been placed outside the parental home for a certain period
of tinme?

21. Ms. EL GUI NDI asked what the infant and maternal nortality rates were
and what percentages of disabled children were male and fenmale. What type of
monitoring systemwas used to verify those percentages?

22. Ms. MXHUANE said that, although statistics on cases of substance
abuse, suicide and parasuicide had been provided, no surveys seened to have
been conducted to provide a broad picture of how those problens affected the
comunity. Were any such surveys under way or planned for the future?

23. M. GRIFFITH (Barbados) said that, in 1998, the popul ati on of Barbados
had been 266,900, the birth rate 13.6 per cent and the popul ation growh rate
0.6 per cent per annum wth infant nortality down to 7.8 per 1,000 live
births and maternal nortality negligible. Mre was spent on health and
education than on any other sector; 193.8 mllion dollars had been allocated
to health out of a total budget of 1.9 billion dollars. |In effect, there was
a free national health service backed up by a good network of private health
provi ders.

24. It was inpossible to know for certain whether abortion was used as a
met hod of contraception. Every effort was made to offer conprehensive
reproductive health counselling to anyone seeking it and term nation of
pregnancy was governed by very stringent regulations: at |east one doctor's
certificate was required and after the first three nonths, the operation had
to be perforned in a hospital. Furthernore, the Fam |y Life Education
Programe provi ded gui dance in schools and on radio and tel evision. Pregnant
wonen and nothers were automatically referred to community foll owup care
The green card was a record of a child's birth and i rmuni zation and gave
entitlenent to free dental care.



CRC/ C/ SR. 536
page 6

25. He said that under a conprehensive, albeit unwitten, education and
protection policy to deal with HV infection and AIDS, all health
practitioners and even teachers had to follow safety procedures at all tines.
Hl V-positive children received the same education as other young people and
their anonymty was protected in order to avoid discrimnation. The
Government had established the National Advisory Conmittee on AIDS, while the
Al DS Soci ety of Barbados, a non-governnmental organization, received government
support.

26. Chi |l dren under 16 were all owed access to psychol ogi cal services, and
every secondary school had a guidance and counsel |l ing departnment staffed by
trained officers who observed strict confidentiality and could i ndependently
refer cases to other agencies. In addition, a nunber of schools had
establ i shed peer counselling groups. The Youth Advocacy Movenent conpri sed
groups of young persons trained to deal with adol escent devel opment and
reproductive health and rights issues. It was hoped that such groups could be
set up in every school, as it was recognized that young people tended to
listen to the advice of their peers. Song and dance were used to get the
message across and youth groups went into depressed areas to try to work “on
the bl ock” with young people who woul d ot herwi se shun counsel | i ng.

27. There were no street children in Barbados. |If a nmother and her children
were evicted fromtheir hone, the social services acted fast to find enmergency
housi ng. The Juvenile Liaison Scheme (a special unit of police officers
trained as social workers) and the Child Care Board |ikew se intervened to
provi de assi stance.

28. Turning to the question of why boys were nore frequently abandoned than
girls, he explained that one reason was that it was w dely believed that

adol escent boys were difficult and troubl esome, and so prospective adoptive
parents preferred girls. Sone wel cone changes in attitude had been achi eved
by an information drive and advocacy.

29. He pointed out that the Child Care Board's statistics on child abuse
could record only reported cases and he believed that for every reported case,
five mght go unreported. In 1998 there had been 1,132 referrals. Since no
speci fic study on the subject had yet been conducted, postgraduate soci ol ogy
students were being encouraged to undertake that work.

30. Replying to the question about breastfeeding, he said that the Mnistry
of Health had been working on a breastfeedi ng pronotion programre and a

nati onal survey providing up-to-date information was due to be published in
the near future. The Queen Elizabeth Hospital had received the Baby-Friendly
Hospital Award in January 1999. The breastfeeding initiative covered the
first six nonths of a child' s Ilife and conmmunity nurses encouraged nmothers to
breastfeed for as long as possible. A nunber of private or government-run
day-care centres had been established to assist nursing working nothers.
Unfortunately, industrial conpanies had not yet set up créches on their

prem ses, but they were being urged to do so.

31. If children were orphaned by AIDS, the Child Care Board took i mediate
action and efforts focused on finding foster parents, preferably within the
extended fam |y, and on keeping the child at school



CRC/ C/ SR. 536
page 7

32. Ms. CRAWFORD acknow edged that more effort needed to be done to inprove
the quality and collection of data on substance abuse and suicide. The

Nati onal Mnitoring Comrittee had nmade research in that area one of its
priorities. In addition, the existance of a research and coordi nati on section
in the new Mnistry of Social Transformation would nmake it easier to address
causes of suicide. She did not have any statistics on the percentage of

di sabled children in the population, but the relevant data were being
col | ected.

33. The purpose of visits carried out during adoption and foster care
reviews was to nonitor the welfare, health, conduct and schooling of the
child. Fromthe outset, therefore, the authorities had a good idea of whether
children should be reunited with their famlies or required permanent

pl acenent. As families could foster with a view to adoption, the child was
offered nore stability in the course of the adoption process. |In the event of
short-term pl acenent, the Child Care Board worked with the famly and tried to
secure reunification, but sometimes separation proved necessary.

34. The Evalina Smith Ward and St. Andrew s Centre catered for severely

di sabl ed children and young people. Disabled children could remain in schoo
until they were 19. Fromthe age of 16, they could attend the pre-vocationa
centre where they learned life skills. Children with disabilities could also
go to normal schools and universities.

35. In reply to the question about problenms encountered in early chil dhood
programes, she said that the nunber of staff monitoring that system had been
i ncreased fromone to three. One was a pre-school educator, the other two
were social workers. There was indeed a mnimum set of standards for day-care
facilities, which were inspected by the Mnistry of Education, the Fire
Department and the Child Care Board. Registration was on an annual basis and
strict medical and licensing requirenments had to be net, after which there was
ongoing nmonitoring. In addition to private day-care centres, the CGovernnent
had set up nore nurseries attached to schools, for over 3-year-olds. A parent
vol unteer system had been introduced, whereby parents were trained to help
with the general running of such facilities.

36. Referring to neasures to protect children who had been sexually abused,
she said that the principal aimwas to reduce the child's trauma. A Child
Care Board representative, sonetinmes acconpanied by a police officer
interviewed the victimwho would then be taken to a doctor. A safety order
woul d be issued if necessary. It had been found that famlies were often
willing to assist, thereby obviating the need for institutional care.
However, if placenent proved to be necessary, the child was assessed and
counsel l ed by a psychol ogi st and a psychiatrist. A child abuse project had
been | aunched in two schools to alert children to i nappropriate behavi our
enpower themto say “no” and advise themwhat to do in the event of indecent
assaul t.

37. M ss MASON (Barbados) said that she wished to clarify her remarks of the
previ ous day. Under the Famly Law Act of 1976, children born from consensua
unions that had lasted at |east five years were entitled to the sane

consi derations as those born frommarital unions. The Status of Children



CRC/ C/ SR. 536
page 8

Ref orm Act had subsequently been passed to prohibit the stigmatization of
children born out of wedlock. Al matters affecting children born in or out
of wedl ock were handled in a manner that involved both parents; that included
cust ody issues.

38. Turning to the matter of violence in the hone, she said that when a case
of child abuse was brought to the attention of the courts, the parents, and
the nother in particular, were called in to provide information about the
child. Efforts were sonetinmes made to settle such problenms out of court,
since nothers were often unwilling to give evidence. Sone Barbados judges

di sm ssed such cases; nobst, however, proceeded, considering the nother as a
hostile witness. Dismssal undoubtedly resulted in | oss of self-esteemfor a
child. In any event, the courts sought to further the child' s best interests;
for instance, consideration was given to whether or not the perpetrator of
abuse was the sole breadw nner. Both the Child Care Board and the courts
endeavoured to obtain the testinmony of the child. Unfortunately, despite the
fact that cases involving children were supposed to be handl ed expeditiously,
t he Barbados justice system worked slowmy: an investigation had to be
conducted and nedi cal evidence presented.

39. The Board of Wonen's Affairs had established a conmprehensive programre
to deal with donestic abuse; it frequently conducted sem nars, workshops and
surveys, and sponsored radio and tel evision broadcasts regarding violence in
the honme. Its efforts had resulted in the promul gation of the Donestic
Violence (Protection Orders) Act 1992. Under the act, a person wishing to
enter a conplaint of domestic abuse coul d approach the courts directly,
without first visiting a police station. Wthin two days, the parties

i nvol ved were sumoned. There followed a period of six weeks during which the
parties were expected to receive counselling. |If either party refused to
partici pate in counselling, he/she would be served a court order and becone
liable to inprisonnent. |In addition, both the Child Care Board and the

Wel fare Department could institute proceedings, at the request of the child or
of any other individual. It was therefore no |onger necessary to contact the
police, who had fornerly been an obstacle to justice in cases of donestic

vi ol ence.

40. In many jurisdictions, forns of m sconduct such as truancy or running
away from home were considered statutory offences, and could result in court
proceedi ngs. There were no street children in Barbados. Runaways who di d not
return honme voluntarily mght face police charges, but only if there was a
persistent pattern of msconduct. The social welfare agencies, for their
part, always returned children to their homes.

41. Ms. KARP asked whet her counselling was available to children who did

not attend school. She wondered whet her a system of protection orders was
sufficiently stringent to deal with the problem of donestic violence, which
was, after all, a crimnal offence. Were there provisions for the punishnent

of offenders?

42. M ss MASON (Barbados) said that the charge agai nst the perpetrator of
the violent act constituted part of the conplaint.



CRC/ C/ SR. 536
page 9

43. The CHAI RPERSON invited the members of the Committee to raise additiona
guestions regardi ng education, leisure and cultural activities and specia
protecti on measures.

44, Ms. KARP asked whether any effort had been made to study the quality of
education in the various parts of the school system government or private,
and in particular to prevent children from dropping out of school

45, According to a survey conducted by the World Bank in 1995, 50 per cent
of children in rural schools, and 30 per cent of children in urban schools,
did not have basic textbooks. Furthermore, schools suffered froma shortage
of libraries. In viewof a child s right to education and information, what
measures was the Government taking to renedy those deficiencies? She also
wi shed to know what measures, if any, had been taken to combat drug use and
vi ol ence in school s.

46. The report offered little information about conpliance with articles 30
and 40 of the Convention. It would be useful to know whether the disciplinary
use of flogging in prison was nonitored, and whether a report of the
circunstances was required. Children were currently detained in a separate
ward of the adult prison. Had the Governnent envisaged alternative detention
and rehabilitation nmeasures?

47. Ms. TIGERSTEDT- TAHTELA said that the Barbados Government evidently
accorded high priority to social services and welfare. From a macroeconom c
standpoint, it would be hel pful to know how the Governnent financed the
budget. What was the taxation system and was it effective? She would be
interested to know how the gl obalization of the world econony had affected

Bar bados. Had the Government found ways of benefiting fromthat phenonenon,
for instance by taxing foreign conpanies? Wat kinds of grants and funds were
received fromthe international conmunity and what policies had the Governnent
instituted to alleviate poverty?

48. Ms. OUEDRAOXO i nquired how the system of nonitoring school attendance
was structured, how many nonitors there were, and whether they worked by zone
or by school. To what extent was education free? What expenses were paid by
parents, and - in view of the fact that schol arshi ps were disbursed only to
secondary school students - what neasures were taken to assist parents of

pri mary school chil dren who were unable to pay? Was the number of schol arships
for secondary school children sufficient? Wre other resources avail abl e?

49. The Sexual O fences Act, 1992-93, made sexual intercourse with a child
under the age of 14 a crimnal offence; but the mninumlegal age of consent
was 16. What happened when a child who fell between those two ages was
sexual | y abused? Allow ng a person who had sexual intercourse with a young
person to cl ai m unawareness of his or her age vitiated the law. Since npst
children now | ooked ol der than their age, were not all consequently in danger?
What neasures were envisaged to provide better protection from sexual abuse?

50. Ms. KARP inquired how many children were inprisoned in Barbados, and
what neasures were taken to provide the m nimum conditions necessary for their
wel f are.



CRC/ C/ SR. 536
page 10

51. Regrettably, the report made no nention of leisure, play or cultura
activities.

52. M. RABAH asked how many young people were comritted to the Governnent
I ndustrial School rather than to prison, and how they were treated. He also
wi shed to know how they were treated in police stations, and how | ong they
could legally be detained. Did any NGOs assist the Government in the

adm ni stration of juvenile justice?

53. More informati on woul d be wel come concerning neasures taken to conbat
drug abuse.

54. Ms. MXHUANE wel comed the efforts to introduce a child-centered
curriculumin the schools, to provide nore books, to reduce the disparities
between rural and urban schools, and to establish teacher training programres.
Had those reforns been evaluated? |If so, what were the results?

55. M. DOEK inquired how many children in Barbados were in conflict with
the | aw, whether the requirement that an adult detai nee should be brought
before a judge within 72 hours also applied to children, and whether children
benefited from | egal assistance after arrest. He also wi shed to know whet her
children committed to the Governnment Industrial School could file a request
for rel ease, and whet her they had an i ndependent right to do so.

56. M ss MASON (Barbados) said that children who had been sentenced by the
juvenile justice systemcould be held in a juvenile detention facility unti
they reached the age of 18. As the Juvenile Court could inpose sentences
ranging fromthree to five years, that meant in practice that a 15-year-old
woul d receive a three-year sentence. Young offenders who behaved so badly in
that facility that they were regarded as uncontrollable, were sent back to the
court. The juvenile judicial officer would then conduct an inquiry and the
court could order their transfer to the adult prison. As only 10 out of

100 places in the femal e section of the prison were in use, young people

detai ned there woul d be segregated fromany adult prisoners. |In fact, none of
the young del i nquents who had been sentenced by the Juvenile Court were being
held in the adult prison, whereas sone 16 to 18-year-ol ds who had appeared
before an adult court were being detained there.

57. In response to questions from M. Doek and M. Rabah, she said that,
when a child was arrested, the arresting officers' first duty was to contact
the parents. They were al so obliged to sumon a probation officer, failing
whi ch the case would be automatically dismssed by the court. It was
customary for a child to be handed over to his or her parents to be brought
before the court the following day. No child was ever kept in prison or in
police custody overnight. Children could be taken to the Child Care Board if
necessary or to the Governnent Industrial School if they were violent. NGOs
provi ded assi stance through being represented on the visiting boards of the
Juveni |l e Liaison Scheme, the Industrial Schools and the prisons.

58. Wth regard to the question asked by M. Rabah, she said that all the
rel evant information concerning action to conbat drug abuse was contained in
the witten reply to question 36. In reply to M. Doek's question, she
conceded that there was a serious problemw th regard to the collection of



CRC/ C/ SR. 536
page 11

statistics. There was a Central Statistical Ofice, but the data it collected
often differed frompolice data, which were based on different indicators and
could in turn differ fromJuvenile Court data. As Ms. Crawford had said

every attenpt would be made to furnish the Conmttee with nore streaniined

i nformati on when Bar bados presented its second periodic report.

59. All children were entitled to legal aid, although it was refused by sone
parents who preferred their children to be disciplined by the courts.
Criticismhad been justly levelled at the discrimnation against children
inmplicit in sentencing under the juvenile justice system That discrimnation
lay in the fact that, for a simlar offence, an adult could be sentenced to
per haps one year's inprisonment, whereas a child had to be sent to reform
school for three to five years. Any reduction of the child' s sentence
required a protracted process of application to the relevant authorities to
have the child |icensed out to the parents over a certain period. However,
over the years it had becone common practice, instead of sentencing a child to
three years in reformschool, to inpose a sentence of perhaps one year
dependi ng on the offence, in order to circumvent the |long process entailed in
havi ng the sentence reduced. Legally, a child of 15 could be sentenced to
three years' detention and a child of 13 to a five-year term so that they
woul d be rel eased at age 18. Ways of renedying that discrimnatory situation
wer e under active consideration

60. Ms. CRAWFORD (Bar bados) said that all Barbadian children were entitled
to free education up to the tertiary level. They were tested for passage from
primary to secondary education by the conmon entrance exam nation, usually at
age 11, after which they could opt to attend a free governnment secondary
school, or a private - usually religious - secondary school, in which case the
children received a bursary to assist with school needs.

61. Since the initial report had been submtted, the education system had
been reviewed, culmnating in the publication of a Wite Paper for

i mpl enentati on of an educational reform which had begun in 1995 and was
currently being evaluated. It had been decided that the problem concerned not
so much access to education, but its quality. Accordingly, the system of
automati c placement had been made nore flexible to enable children to defer

t he conmmon entrance exam nation for one year, or, conversely, to take

advant age of the fast-track systemand sit the exami nation earlier, depending
on their abilities. Under the reform primary schoolchildren were tested in
Engli sh and mat hematics at the ages of 7 and 9 so that any deficiencies could
be renedied in tinme for the commopn entrance exam nation. The sight and
hearing of all children in the 5 to 11 age group were tested to ensure that
their academ c performance was not inhibited.

62. Primary schools were free and assistance with the purchase of textbooks
and uniforms coul d be obtained through the welfare system There were three
of ficial attendance officers who nonitored absenteeismin the entire schoo
system They coul d apprehend children in public places, contact the parents
and, where necessary, follow up their investigations in the child' s honme and
make the appropriate referrals. One outcone of the educational reformwas the
Educt ech 2000 Programre designed to inprove the quality of textbooks.



CRC/ C/ SR. 536
page 12

63. Al'l secondary school s possessed libraries, as did nmany primary school s.
Pupils at those that did not had access to nobile libraries or the permanent
libraries that existed in each parish. Although schol arshi ps were awarded
only for secondary education in private schools, education was compul sory and
parents coul d be punished for failure to send their children to school

64. M. GRIFFITH (Barbados), replying to the question about the Governnent
budget said that the total budget was $1.9 billion, of which $1.6 billion was
projected revenue, with $1.5 billion com ng fromtax revenue and $73 nmillion
fromnon-tax revenue. He would forward to Committee menmbers copies of the
Government's Estimate of Expenditure for 1999-2000, in which financing
arrangenents were explained in detail

65. On the subject of globalization, while there were benefits for the

i ndustrialized countries, especially those which had partnerships with | arge
mul ti nati onal corporations, devel oping countries with small open econom es,
such as those in the Caribbean, were extrenely vul nerable. For instance, the
World Trade Organi zation had permtted the United States to i npose sanctions
on European countries offering preferential arrangenents to banana-produci ng
Cari bbean islands. The Cari bbean was perturbed | est the same shoul d occur
with the sugar industry. At a recent neeting of the Caribbean Devel opment
Bank, the Prinme M nister of Barbados had stressed the need to restructure
Cari bbean economies within five years which would naturally call for a great
deal of political will and massive investnents.

66. The Governnent's manifesto addressed in detail the subject of poverty
eradi cation, for which there was a productive partnership between the
CGovernment and the private sector, including NGOs. The Mnistry of Socia
Transformati on had been established specifically to deal with poverty and had
a budget of $63 million. The Rural Devel opment Conmi ssion and the Urban
Devel opnent Commi ssion played an inportant role in poverty eradication. The
entire social service systemwould be placed under that single mnistry which
woul d conprise a sort of “one-stop shop” for all services. The NGO sector

i ncl udi ng churches and community associations, would identify cases of need,
because not all poor people were prepared to cone forward. Assistance should
be provided in such a way as not to underm ne the dignity of the human person
Poverty alleviation was not sinply a matter of noney, but involved
establishing the right conditions. Barbados would continue to inprove its
soci al services and endeavour to mamintain the popul ation growh rate at

under 1 per cent.

67. The CHAI RPERSON invited Committee nmenbers to voice their concl uding
observations on the initial report of Barbados.

68. M. DOEK conplinented the del egation on its presentation of the report
and the witten and oral replies, all of which had been highly informative.
There were many positive aspects to be noted, including the activities of the
National Conmittee for Monitoring the Rights of the Child and the Child Care
Board, the activities relating to the care and protection of children with

di sabilities, and nore energetic action to deal with child abuse and negl ect.
The issues which in his view called for attention were data collection and
discrimnation in the area of education, especially against the country's
non- per manent residents. There was also a need for nore specific |egislation



CRC/ C/ SR. 536
page 13

to give children a voice in their own affairs; it appeared to be left to the
discretion of the interlocutor to judge the child' s maturity. He recomrended
that the authorities adopt a clear policy on foster care. Lastly, he was
extrenely alarnmed at the figures for teenage births and aborti ons.

69. Ms. KARP, endorsing M. Doek's conplinentary remarks, said that she
hoped that the newWy established National Mnitoring Conmittee would work to
i npl ement the plans and projects mentioned by the del egation and that the
Committee's comrents woul d be publicized when the del egation returned hone.
She al so hoped that the Committee's recommendati on woul d hel p enhance the
status of children in Barbados.

70. Ms. MXHUANE congratul ated the delegation on its fruitful dialogue with
the Committee and on the fact that its very positive programes and policies
addressed nost of the articles of the Convention. She was, however, deeply

di sturbed at the deficiencies in data collection and reconmended that the
authorities endeavour to establish useful statistics on such problens as child
abuse and suicide. She hoped that the new National Plan would be sustai ned
Sustainability was a maj or problemthat needed to be addressed for the good of
Bar badi an children in particul ar.

71. On the subject of corporal punishnment, there appeared to be a consensus
within the Comrittee that the practice of flogging needed to be addressed
urgently. It spread the idea of violence in the honme and in society as a

whol e, and was not a practice on which children's behavi our shoul d be
nodel | ed. The educational initiatives |launched in 1994 were inpressive, but
it was necessary to undertake studies to evaluate their outcone and the
chal l enges and difficulties encountered in inplenmenting them

72. The CHAI RPERSON invited the del egation to respond to menbers' concl udi ng
observati ons.

73. M. GRIFFITH (Barbados) thanked the Conmittee for the opportunity it had
of fered his delegation to benefit fromits vast know edge and rich insight
into matters pertaining to children in Barbados and, by extension, the world
over. He would inpress upon his authorities the need to consider ratifying

t he Convention agai nst Torture.

74. A Cari bbean-w de nedia conpetition, currently in progress, was focusing
public attention on adol escent reproductive health and rights. Awards would
be made to individual journalists and the nedia firnms they worked for, the aim
being to ensure forward novenent on that issue throughout the Caribbean. He
woul d informhis authorities of the Committee's dissatisfaction with data

di saggregati on procedures in Barbados, particularly with regard to budgetary
spendi ng on children's issues as opposed to adm ni strative and ot her

expendi ture.

75. The shortage of social workers had arisen precisely because the training
courses had been expanded. However, negotiations were being conducted with
the University of the West Indies to accelerate training. Barbadian socia

wor kers who had been working in Canada, the United Kingdom and the

United States were returning hone, and the country would certainly take

advant age of their training and experience.



CRC/ C/ SR. 536
page 14

76. He had noted the need for advocacy on gender issues, especially with
regard to the role and responsibilities of men. That was a sociol ogica
problemrequiring urgent attention to ensure the socialization of boys as well
as girls. Twenty-five years earlier, men had benefited from hi gher |evels of
education than women and had dom nated the major professions. That situation
had been totally reversed, with wonen now accounting for 73 per cent of

uni versity graduates.

77. Two adol escent devel opnment centres had been asked to deal with young
peopl e about to |l eave residential care at age 18 under a programme desi ghed,
with the assistance of the Caribbean Broadcasting Corporation and ot her
private firns, to ensure adequate preparation for their return to society.
The Elijah House Project, with non-uniformed staff and individual roons,

provi ded an opportunity for the residents to help operate the project and
devel op their vocational and |eadership skills. A telethon was being planned
to raise funds for the project. Serious attention would be given to speeding
up the overhaul of the Reformatory and Industrial Schools (Anmendnent) Act. He
was aware of the need to standardize statistical material and accelerate its
conputerization to make it nore efficient and readily avail able.

78. On the del egation's return to Barbados, it would be his responsibility
to submt to the National Committee for Mnitoring the Rights of the Child a
report containing specific recommendati ons on the action advocated at the
current session and the required pace of inplementation. The dialogue with
the Conmittee had been an excellent |earning experience and had provi ded

val uabl e insight into child care as a whol e.

79. The CHAI RPERSON sai d that she had been enormously inpressed by the
quality of the Barbadi an del egati on whose report - the first she had had to
deal with as Chairperson - had given rise to an interesting and good-nat ured
di scussion. She expected the Conmittee's report and reconmendati ons to be
publicized in Barbados in due course.

The neeting rose at 1.10 p.m




